Unapproved Approved

Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes
Monday November 29, 2010

Attendance: Chairman Fred Kelley, Vice-Chair Carleton RobiegleéStman Joe Duarte,
Selectman Amanda Soares, Selectman Richard Sndegti@en’s Assistant Cheryl Eastman,
and Administrative Assistant Andria Hansen.

7:00 p.m. Chairman Kelley called the Public Meeting to ardad immediately followed with
the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Board to accept the donation of a pickup sweepéor the Recycling Center from Jim
Griswold. Selectman Soares explained the sweeper is arthitéamt that goes on to the skid
steer. It's like a street sweeper. It's very effit and it's a nice piece of equipment for the
recycling center to have. Chairman Kelley motiot@@ccept the donation and send a letter of
thanks to Cinny Griswald for the sweeper. Secorde&electman Duarte. All were in favor.
Motion carried.

The Board to authorize payment of payroll checks amh accounts payable checks.
Selectman Snow motioned to approve payment of Hayamifest number 000601-05, checks to
be dated 12/02/2010, with a total gross payroll amof $20,892.75. Seconded by Selectman
Soares. All were in favor. Motion carried. Séhean Snow motioned to approve payment of
accounts payable manifest number 120110 checks tlated 12/02/2010, with a total amount of
$50,794.67. Seconded by Selectman Soares. AB wefavor. Motion carried. Selectman
Snow motioned to approve payment of payroll manbifesnber 000600-06, checks to be dated
11/24/2010, with a total amount of $14,356.83. &ded by Selectman Soares. All were in
favor. Motion carried. Selectman Snow motionedapprove payment of accounts payable
manifest number 110410, checks to be dated 11/28/20th a total amount of $24,121.28.
Seconded by Selectman Soares. All were in falbotion carried. Selectman Snow motioned
to approve payment of payroll manifest number 0@08%, checks to be dated 11/18/2010, with
a total amount of $14,567.24. Seconded by Select8wares. All were in favor. Motion
carried. Selectman Snow motioned to approve paymieaccounts payable manifest number
110310, checks to be dated 11/18/2010 with a tatabunt of $23,699.81. Seconded by
Selectman Soares. All were in favor. Motion aadri

The Board to consider Fire Chief Young's recommend#on to appoint Doreen
Schibblehute as a Firefighter/ EMS Provider. Selectman Robie read from the letter submitted
by Fire Chief Young (see attached). Selectman &afwtioned to accept Fire Chief Young's
recommendation to appoint Doreen Schibblehute éoGandia Volunteer Fire Department as a
Firefighter/ EMS Provider pending a successful gasknd check. Seconded by Selectman
Duarte. All were in favor. Motion carried.



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 111R9/

Firefighter Dinner: Selectman Robie would like to send a thank ytted¢o the Volunteer Fire
Fighter Association for inviting the Selectmenheit annual dinner.

Approval of Previous Minutes: Public meeting minues and non-public meeting minutes of
11/08/10. The approval of the Novembel"82010 minutes was deferred to the Decemb& 13
2010 meeting

Updates to the Solid Waste Ordinance. Selectman Soares went over some changes to the
Solid Waste Ordinance (see attached). One oftithages was that dump picking would not be
allowed. They did talk about ways to keep resigenit. Selectman Soares thought the orange
snow fencing would be good to put in front of thetat pile. She then referred to item (i)
regarding the swap shop. It will be run by volangeand if a volunteer is not available to run
the swap shop it will remain closed. She revievtenh (j) which notes no items of substantial
size will be accepted and disposed of unless apgrby 2/% majority of the Selectmen. They
took out 2/3" and replaced it with the majority vote of the BhaiSelectman Duarte wanted to
address item (i) and maybe add for residents @#lectman Soares replied they have addressed
this and if they see people making substantiaktthee volunteers are going to ask to see a
license. Some of the volunteers have been chedkinglump stickers. Selectman Duarte
mentioned there was an incident where someonewidieiswap shop and one of the volunteers
asked if they had a sticker. The person’s respaasehe didn’'t need one, because this place is
full of junk.  Selectman Soares replied we neeéirtd out if the person is a resident and then
we send them a letter. There is a standard ltéérsays if you do not obtain a dump sticker you
will be turned away from the dump. Selectman Daarbted they have this person’s plate
number so they can find out who it is. Selectmamaie mentioned that some hazardous waste
was dropped off at the swap shop. There was sasweission about residents having dump
stickers. Selectman Soares explained they haédssith the substantial size items and they
decided to leave item (j) in. She explained itégnand they felt the minimum age to enter the
facility without an adult would be 16 instead of. 18electman Snow felt they should get rid of
no exceptions in item (k), because it's redunda@itizen Rick Lazott felt that as long as the
person (under 18) is accompanied by an adult theygo into the recycling center. Selectman
Soares replied they can, but they just didn’t widuet younger children running into traffic or
getting into the metal pile. They are trying tea the liability. Chairman Kelley noted he has
seen kids going through the pile and was conceatedt them getting hurt. Selectman Robie
guestioned items (f) and (g). He asked if thereasadmittance to the metal pile you won't be
able to get rid of your stuff. Selectman Soargdied you will be able to toss your stuff in like
you do your recyclables. Selectman Robie noted hieatidn't have a problem with people
picking in the metal pile if they see somethingytimeed. Selectman Soares agreed, but the
metal pile will always be an issue. Selectman Stimought they agreed to no dump picking
being allowed. If they are going to allow it theged to have someone monitoring the metal
pile. We also need to decide if we want to assigralue. He agrees with recycling the metal
stuff and there has to be some way of doing ite@slan Soares replied we don’'t have a

Page2 of 6



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 111R9/

gualified person to assign a value. She was fiite lgaving item (g) out but would like to
discuss (f) a little further. Selectman Soaresdske Board if they would like to accept these
changes with the corrections made. There was durtliscussion about dump picking.
Chairman Kelley noted if someone wants a pieceaof they want from the pile he doesn’t see a
problem with that. He has a problem with someoei#irgy hurt. Selectman Soares mentioned
there are people that will spend hours searchiraugh the metal pile. Selectman Robie stated
that is dump picking. Citizen Rick Lazott felt tlsaabuse. Selectman Soares explained that is
why dump picking is not allowed. Selectman Soasdsed if the Board agreed with the changes
could they approve them. Selectman Snow would tikeee a clean copy before the Board
approves them. Selectman Duarte asked if thesk swpersede the existing ordinance.
Selectman Soares replied they would and she véBqnt everyone with a clean copy.

Removal of the Old Swap Shop building. Chairman Kelley felt they needed to make a
decision on this. He would like to put it out tadb It's not worth anything to the town.
Chairman Kelley motioned to put the old swap shop out to bid. Seconded by Selectman Robie

for discussion. Selectman Duarte thought they should put it odditl, because it is an eye sore.
The other building could be used for cemetery depemt. Selectman Soares agreed and didn’t
see the purpose of the old swap shop. If theyidedf it and put some grass down it will look a
lot better. Selectman Snow questioned why werasich a hurry to get rid of the swap shop.
He would prefer to have the smaller building fog temeteries. The building in back is too big.
We can'’t put it out to bid, because it has to gahe Planning Board and the Conservation
Commission and then the Board needs to have twticphbarings 14 days apart. Selectman
Duarte felt one of his concerns is anytime you hameold dump like this there is always a
liability concern. Chairman Kelley noted theyesldy had a public hearing. Selectman Soares
added the Conservation Commission didn’t have a®yfar the old building. Selectman Robie
would like the area cleaned up and the people om Reston Road would also. He felt they
should get rid of the building. Selectman Snow wpgosed to getting rid of the small building
in front. There is a statute that was passed bytdtvn that says there is a process for selling
town buildings and if we don’t follow that procelss will be calling Atty. Mayer. Selectman
Snow questioned why there was such a rush to getfihe building. Selectman Robie replied
Selectman Soares is trying to get the closure dor@electman Snow stated this building has
nothing to do with the closure and has nothing doadgth the closure plan. Selectman Soares
noted they would be recycling the building. Seteen Snow disagreed with the concept of
getting rid of the old building. Selectman Sodedsthat RSA 41:14A didn’t cover the old swap
shop. It's not a building with electricity and heaShe thought it applied to residential or
commercial buildings with significant value. Thésa shed building. Selectman Snow replied if
it's something that could be assessed and taxedthas value. Selectman Robie noted getting
rid of the building would make the site a lot m@resentable. Citizen Rick Lazott thought the
Board could make a decision based on Atty. Mayet®mmendation. Chairman Kelley replied
he had no problem with making a calBelectman Duarte amended the motion pending legal
advice they will put the old swap shop building out to bid. Selectman Snow wanted the question

Page3 of 6



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 111R9/

and answer in writing. Selectman Robie thoughtytekould have a sealed bid and put a
minimum amount what we will be asking for the bunlgl Chairman Kelley, Selectman Robie,
Sectman Duarte, Selectman Soares were in favor of the motion and Selectman Show was
opposed. Motion carried on a vote of 4 to 1.

Old Smyth Library. Selectman Snow noted the Heritage Commissiom ighé process of
determining a use for the Old Smyth Library. Buward voted at the last meeting to encumber
some funds for the septic design and well. He dgkehis is going out to bid. Selectman Robie
stated the Board agreed to appropriate the fundgetoa septic design done for the Smyth
building. Selectman Snow asked if the RFQ has garige because he has concerns with the
procedure. He felt this wasn't clearly consistaith the use of the building. For example, if we
end up using the building for archival storage waulan’t need the facilities that we would if
we’re going to use it for public meetings. |If it5&s historical building do we need to put in
handicap access and why don’t we have handicagaaté¢his building for the second floor. He
guestioned if we talked to Historic PreservationCioncord to do an evaluation. He noted L-
Chip has provided funds to do this. He thoughy theeded to discuss what they will be using
the building for. The actual $1,500 should be @niby what the use is going to be. He would
like to see the request for developing the plamoiteefve spend the money to actually put in a
septic and drill a well and that it's consistenthwthe use. He questioned if they are going to put
a well in or are we going with a shallow well. Thehould look at this very carefully before
they go out and spend the $1,500. They should &akiternative sources of energy for it and
the Preservation Group should come and look atSelectman Snow asked if the Heritage
Commission was going to put out a request for qudielectman Robie stated the Heritage
Commission opened a public assessment of thatibgildst month and all of the committees
were invited to come. There were 13 people imdtace at this meeting. He was asked to go
back to the Selectman and ask to appropriate theeynto get a general septic design done. It
would be a system for two bathrooms. We are notggto put this out to bid. We'll get a few
reputable names and they will call one of themeyTwill have the engineer draw a system and
get it approved. Then they will pay him for higwsees. Selectman Snow noted normally on
something of this magnitude of cost they put oulRH©Q. Selectman Robie noted its $1,500.
Selectman Snow clarified that the Heritage Commissvill handle this process. Selectman
Robie replied this is the first step in making thelding usable. Selectman Snow asked what
they are going to use the building for. SelectrRaie replied they haven't gotten to that yet.
Selectman Snow noted he will be part of that preceSelectman Soares mentioned that it was
discussed at the meeting that the use for theibgiMtould be determined further in the process.
Selectman Snow felt that was the wrong approaSlelectman Robie explained for the scope of
work they don’t need to know what they are goingise the building for. Citizen Rick Lazott
felt they should get the septic done and then tagydetermine what they will use it for. There
was further discussion about the use of the buldiGelectman Snow noted that he brought a
warrant article to the Board that would have estakld a committee that would have dealt with
the Old Smyth Library. He thought what is happgmiow is equivalent to that and he thought it

Paged of 6



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 111R9/

was a good thing. He was just asking questionsitathe process. Selectman Robie noted the
Heritage Commission will continue to involve alltbe other committees in the process.

Fire Department Tank Removal. Selectman Snow would like to see the money mdxed
the Forestry line to the Building Maintenance liBelectmen’s Assistant Eastman noted that she
would take care of it.

Raymond Sand and Gravel. Selectman Snow informed the Board that Raymont Sand
Gravel was granted a variance to import mater@ainfilCandia Sand and Gravel to crush it at
Raymond Sand and Gravel. They were granted thanee by the Raymond Planning Board.
He asked if the Board was aware of this and thedf@aRlanning Board has conditions that
would need to be met prior to that. They haveuwdisons with the new owners of Candia Sand
and Gravel and there appears to be a significameflieo letting this happen. He questioned if
the Candia Planning Board was going to review #mat make a recommendation. Selectman
Snow further explained that Raymond Sand and Grawmild have to satisfy all of the
requirements of both the Candia and Raymond PlgnBimards. Selectman Robie stated the
Candia Sand and Gravel side is closed and Raymand &nd Gravel can’t go there and mine.
Selectman Snow explained Candia Sand and Gravep&uwoynowns it and could come to the
Planning Board. Selectman Robie replied they havent to haul things into Raymond the
Raymond Planning Board had to grant Raymond SaddGaavel variance. Selectman Snow
explained the discussion that took place at thenkayl Planning Board meeting was they
wanted to bring stuff from Candia Sand and Grawel ring it to Raymond and crush it over
there. Chairman Kelley explained the Candia sidé@® gravel pit is closed. He needs to come
back to the Planning Board with a reclamation pl&electman Robie added he has a plan but it
was never approved. Selectman Snow thought tfasnration should be brought to the Candia
Planning Board. Selectman Snow thought the rediamanay require blasting. There was a
reclamation plan when Goodstein first came in. ifdhan Kelley explained that Atty. Mayer has
been handling this case from the beginning. Smlact Snow asked if he knew about the
regional impact. Selectman Robie explained Raynm®ad and Gravel can get material from
anywhere and process it. Selectman Snow thoughiMéis specific to being able to take stuff
out of the Candia gravel pit. Selectman Robieieelpf he had a plan approved from Candia he
could do that. He further noted there’s not efoomaterial in Candia Sand and Gravel to haul
out. Citizen Charlie Bowman noted that Candia Samdl Gravel filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy
and that would take Cole out of the picture. Setan Robie noted it's under new management.

Highway Department project. Selectman Snow mentioned that Road Agent Lewsssloane
little project that he would like to do this yealhese projects are over and above what his
budget is. He suggested doing those projects uhdevioore Highway Fund monies. It would
help him clean up some of the little stuff. Seatesh Soares asked what fund he was talking
about. Selectman Snow explained it's a trust fthmat Road Agent Lewis can use for some
small projects. Road Agent Lewis explained thae&man Snow told him there would be
money in the Moore Highway Trust fund and the Teastof the Trust Fund will only release

Pageb of 6



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 111R9/

that money with an invoice. It used to go into ¢femeral fund as a transfer. Road Agent Lewis
guestioned if it is over and above the operatindget or are they going to pay the invoice out of
his budget. Selectman Robie asked in years p#st inoney was transferred into the operating
budget. Selectman Snow explained the Trusteesoniil pay out the money with a voucher.
Road Agent Lewis didn’t want to do a project unleeknew there was money for it. Selectman
Snow explained it will get booked as due in fronusiees of Trust Funds. You send a receipt
with a memo to the Trustees and they send you ekch8electman Robie thought any money
spent on infrastructure is well spent. He questibwhy we are doing this different than in years
past. He noted this will increase the Highway keidry $11,000. Selectman Robie asked Road
Agent Lewis what project he had in mind. Road Adeswis explained Tower Hill would be
the most likely place to spend the money. SelectiRabie asked if the money has been
transferred into the operating budget in years. p&&lectman Snow replied it's been going into
revenues received. Selectman Robie stated nowoaiisg to be spent on infrastructure and we
will have to appropriate it. Selectman Snow replyeu won’t have to appropriate it will be like
FEMA. Selectman Robie explained when we have asthks it's anticipated. Selectman Robie
asked if they want to spend it or leave it in thast Fund. If we don’t spend it we will have to
appropriate it. Selectman Soares would like toTsaeer Hill fixed.

Citizen Joanne Beckwith noted you can see daylighthe new swap shop and she felt it
shouldn’t be that way. It's cold enough out thefelectman Robie explained it's supposed to
be that way, because there’s no insulation. Thapsstop is not supposed to be heated.

Chairman Kelley motioned to adjourned at 8:11 pS®conded by Selectman Duarte. All were
in favor. Motion carried.

Page6 of 6



